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Located on Main Street on the edge of Ritzville's business district, the Dr. Frank R. 
Burroughs home is a relatively modest two-story frame residence in an unusual hybrid 
style. It is rectangular in plan, 40 feet by 30 feet with a one-story kitchen addition 
in back. The house is situated on a double lot in mid-block where it is offset to 
provide a large side yard.

The lower story has clapboard siding and some classic revival details including a 
surrounding veranda on two sides supported by a row of squat Tuscan columns on tall 
pedestals. Above the columns is a plain boxed cornice and frieze. The pedestals 
rest at the level of the porch railing on a jagged stonework plinth that continues 
down to join the exposed basalt foundation -- interrupting the balustrade. Formerly 
there was an open railing above the cornice set back near the perimeter of the flat 
veranda roof.

In contrast to the columns and cornice, the second floor has shingle siding. It par­ 
tially overhangs the first floor on the facades above the veranda.

The roof is an assembly of similar gables on three sides with a hipped portion on the 
fourth. The arrangement is essentially a be!cast hip roof, running parallel to the 
street with a cross gable. One-half of the hip roof has been "eliminated" and re­ 
placed by a pair of parallel, contiguous gables. The eaves line is continued across 
the face of each gable end uninterrupted, creating a triangular section resembling a 
pediment. Under the horizontal soffit there are shallow scroll sawn brackets in sets 
of three placed at intervals depending upon the fenestration and roof arrangement.

Windows on the lower floor are double hung with the smaller over sash divided by diago­ 
nal muntins in a diamond pattern. One window next to the main entrance is divided into 
50 small, bevelled glass prisms in a diaper pattern similar to the diamond muntins 
elsewhere. Beyond the end of the veranda, near the front entrance, is a rectangular 
plan bay window with a diamond pattern leaded glass panel. On the upper floor, there 
are plain double hung windows generally positioned directly under the gables either 
individually or in pairs. There is a small attic window in the tympanum of the front 
gable that at one time included a small, decorative balustrade across the sill in a 
scaled down version of the veranda railing.

There are two major entrances at diagonally opposed corners of the house located at 
opposite ends of the veranda. A third entrance is in back of the house off the 
kitchen.

The interior is essentially unchanged since 1902. Very little painting or redecoration 
has been done since then. Although faded and somewhat dingy, much of the existing 
wallpaper is from that period. A majority of the original household furnishings 
remain, including some carpets.

To the right of the front entrance and stairwell is the parlor (in front) and the 
sitting room which are separated by sliding paneled doors. The parlor ceiling is 
bisected by a deep, open-web beam resting on bolsters and freestanding Tuscan columns.
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The beam consists of two horizontal boxed members one below the other separated by 
grillwork with decorative festoons. On the surrounding walls there is a wallpaper 
frieze above the picture moulding of equivalent depth and in line with the beam -- 
printed in a pattern of similar festoons. Centered in the ceiling on both sides of 
the beam is an inverted "T" electric light fixture assembled from ornamental castings, 
fittings and tubing with matching glass shades.

To the left of the entrance is the doctor's study and the dining room behind it with 
a built-in combination china cabinet and sideboard containing much of Mrs. Burroughs' 
wedding china. The doctor's study is the most completely furnished room in the 
house. It includes Dr. Burroughs' medical instruments, office furniture and library.

Toward the back of the first floor are the kitchen, the maid's room and the pantry. 
The second floor is occupied by three bedrooms « (each with a walk-in closet), a 
bathroom and a storage room. The storage room is one of the few places where the 
woodwork retains its original stained finish.

As a work of architecture the Dr. F. R. Burroughs House is somewhat of a composi­ 
tional oddity, although the mixture of materials and details is remarkably successful i 
communicating the dignity and stature of the medical profession without indulging 
in pretentiousness. The home has a warm and inviting quality befitting the residence 
of a family doctor.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Home of the town's most prominent physician, the Dr. Frank R. Burroughs House was built 
in a time of great prosperity and expansion in Ritzville and Adams County. Vacant from 
the late 1940's until the present, the house has remained virtually unchanged since 1902.

The Great American Desert disappeared suddenly in the last part of the 19th century 
with the formal ending of the frontier in 1890 and the westward expansion of the railroad* 
Farmers found that the semi-arid interior of the nation was the finest wheat land in the 
world. By 1889, when Frank Burroughs arrived in Ritzville, farmers there had learned 
the technique of producing crops on dry land. By 1900 most farmers in Adams County were 
rotating crops in order to retain moisture in the fields. The county's first bumper 
wheat crop was produced in 1897. Ritzville was proclaimed in 1902, "the largest primary 
shipper of wheat and flour of any point in the world," although during later years 
the railroad developed stations at other points in Adams County which ended this distinc­ 
tion. Ritzville remained one of the most prosperous agricultural communities in the 
West until the Great Depression.

In 1888 a young doctor, Frank R. Burroughs, from Columbus, Pennsylvania, stepped off a 
train in Ritzville on his way west. He never boarded the next train to the coast. While 
the citizens questioned him medically, he discovered the business possibilities of this 
barren little town without a competing physician. Burroughs remained in Ritzville for 
the rest of his life.

Born in Columbus, Pennsylvania in 1859, Frank Burroughs studied at Allegheny College, 
Meadeville, Pennsylvania. He completed his medical degree at the University of Buffalo. 
Practicing for five years in Columbus, he moved west in 1888. Burroughs was in many 
ways the father of Ritzville. While others named it, and still others made fortunes 
from it, the doctor healed its sick and delivered its children. He served it as 
councilman, mayor and postmaster. He was also usually the Adams County health officer. 
During World War I, Burroughs was draft board member. He was one of the founding mem­ 
bers of the Masonic and Eastern Star Lodges in Ritzville as well.

Burroughs had an office but he opened his home to patients. His bags, pills and in­ 
struments still cover the table in his study; unchanged by his widow in the 20 years 
following his death. The doctor was active until a cerebral hemorrhage struck while 
at his office. He died January 28, 1925 without regaining consciousness.

When Dr. Burroughs first built in 1889, his house was small and simple. With the 
prosperity of 1902, he remodeled in a grander fashion, adding the upstairs and veranda 
at a cost of $4,000.
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A California architect, J. Flood Walker, designed the alterations. Walker arrived in 
Ritzville in 1902 after practicing in Los Angeles for 10 years. He also designed the 
Bank of Washtucna, Washtucna, Washington and the Hatton School as well as many other 
residences.

The Dr. F. R. Burroughs House is significant as a fairly complete record of the house­ 
hold possessions and lifestyle of a family doctor in rural Eastern Washington during 
the early development of dry land farming. The house survives with few alterations 
and with much of the original wallpaper, floor covering and furnishings that were 
acquired soon after the home was expanded and remodeled in 1902. The doctor's instru­ 
ments and library remain in the house along with clothing and miscellaneous personal 
property. Dr. Burroughs was for many years Ritzville's only physician, where he 
reportedly delivered babies numbering in the thousands.


